PLANNING COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the Virtual Meeting held Via Skype on Thursday, 20 August 2020 from 7.00pm - 8.24pm.

PRESENT: Councillors Cameron Beart, Monique Bonney, Roger Clark, Simon Clark, Mike Dendor, Tim Gibson (Chairman), James Hall, James Hunt, Carole Jackson, Elliott Jayes, Peter Marchington, Benjamin Martin (Vice-Chairman), Ben J Martin, David Simmons, Paul Stephen and Tony Winckless.

OFFICERS PRESENT: Simon Algar, Philippa Davies, Russell Fitzpatrick, Andrew Jeffers, Kellie MacKenzie, Graham Thomas and Jim Wilson.

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: Derek Carnell, Steve Davey, Ken Ingleton, Denise Knights and Richard Palmer.

APOLOGY: Councillor Tim Valentine.

44 MINUTES

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 23 July 2020 (Minute Nos. 22 - 26) were taken as read, approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

45 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No interests were declared.

46 SCHEDULE OF DECISIONS

PART 2

Applications for which **PERMISSION** is recommended

2.1 REFERENCE NO – 20/501751/FULL

APPLICATION PROPOSAL

Variation of condition 5 to application SW/04/1344 (allowed on appeal) for extension and upgrading to Vanity Holiday Village with amendment to condition 5 to read: 'No caravan hereby permitted shall be occupied between 4th January and end of February in any year.

ADDRESS Land Adjoining Vanity Farm And Now Part Of Harts Park Vanity Road Leysdown On Sea ME12 4LP

WARD Sheppey East	PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL	APPLICANT Park Holidays		
	Leysdown	UK Ltd		
		AGENT Rural & Urban		
		Planning Consultancy		

The Major Projects Officer introduced the report and referred to the tabled update for this item.

Mr Ian Butter, the Agent, spoke in support of the application.

The Chairman moved the officer recommendation to approve the application and this was seconded by the Vice-Chairman.

The Chairman explained that a Ward Member had registered to speak against the application but was unable to attend the meeting due to ill-health. His statement was read-out by Democratic Services.

Members were invited to debate the application and the following points were made:

- Understood residents concerns and considered the application would add extra pressure on the local road network, local Police and GP surgeries particularly during the summer season;
- It was an unsustainable development;
- concerned that the Council did not currently enforce the 10 month occupancy of holiday homes;
- there were no material planning reasons to refuse the application;
- most sites on the Isle of Sheppey had already converted to 10 months occupancy so had to allow this;
- insulting that some Members had voted for 12-month occupancy but were against this application for 10-month occupancy; and
- would lose on appeal.

In response to questions from a Member, the Major Projects Officer reported that the site was permitted for 120 caravans but not fully built-out (currently only 20 to 30 caravans were on the site). He added that no objections from any of the Parish Councils had been received.

Councillor Simon Clark moved the following motion: That the application proposal be amended to read 'No caravan hereby permitted shall be occupied between **4 January and 1 March** in any year'. This was seconded by Councillor Cameron Beart.

The Major Projects Officer explained that condition (4) of the report would control the period of time when the caravans could be occupied and that effectively rendered the proposal to amend the description academic. Discussion ensued and the proposer agreed to withdraw the motion.

Resolved: That application 20/501751/FULL be delegated to officers to approve subject to conditions (1) to (5) in the report, the amendment of condition (1) as set-out in the tabled update, the signing of a suitably worded Section 106 Agreement to secure Strategic Access Management and Monitoring contributions (as set-out in the tabled update) and the resolution of the ownership and certification issue.

Group Plc

AGENT Endpoint Limited

APPLICATION PROPOSAL Advertisement Consent for 1no. Internally Illuminated Fascia Sign, 1no. Internally Illuminated Projecting Sign, 1no. Non- Illuminated Panel Sign, 1no. Internally Illuminated Freestanding Totem, 1no. Double sided Post Mounted Sign. ADDRESS Land at Perry Court London Road Faversham Kent ME13 8YA WARD Watling PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL APPLICANT Whitbread

The Major Projects Officer introduced the report and referred to the tabled update for this item. He explained that the applicant had moved and reduced the height of the totem sign to two metres in height and some other signs had been reduced (as set-out in the tabled update) and officers considered the proposal was acceptable.

Faversham Town

Town Councillor John Irwin, representing Faversham Town Council, spoke against the application.

The Chairman moved the officer recommendation to approve the application and this was seconded by the Vice-Chairman.

A Ward Member explained that he had received a lot of local objections to the application. He welcomed the reduction and re-siting of the signs and that it was inline with what the Applicant had done elsewhere. He thought it might have an impact on the public artwork which was due to be installed in the area and disappointed that it was on the approach to the residential affordable housing side of the development.

Resolved: That application 20/502489/ADV be delegated to officers to approve subject to conditions (1) to (6) in the report.

2.3 REFERENCE NO – 19/505353/FULL					
APPLICATION PROPOSAL	-				
Erection of 5no. four-bedroom detached dwellings with associated garages, parking spaces and private amenity space.					
ADDRESS Danedale Stables, Chequers Road, Minster-on-Sea, Sheerness, Kent, ME12 3SJ					
WARD Sheppey Central	D Sheppey Central PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL APPLICANT Mr Sted-Si				
	Minster-on-Sea	AGENT Kent Design Partnership			

The Development Manager introduced the report which he explained was adjacent to a site Members had considered at the June 2020 meeting for an outline

application for five dwellings and that application was the subject of a site meeting scheduled for Wednesday 2 September 2020.

The Development Manager drew attention to page 35 of the report and reported that he would like to amend the recommendation heading in paragraph 10 to read: "Grant subject to the following conditions and delegation to officers to secure an appropriate SAMMS payment as set-out in paragraph 8.17 of the report, to ensure appropriate arrangements are made for securing the uncontrolled crossing as set-out in paragraph 8.14, and to secure the reimbursement to Kent County Council for the loss of the two trees as set-out in paragraph 8.16.

The Development Manager showed Members drawings detailing the site and proposed application. He also outlined the surrounding area and proposed developments. The Development Manager stated that whilst the site was outside of the built-up area of Minster, it did adjoin the settlement boundary of Minster and was in close proximity to existing residential properties to the west and north. He considered it was within a sustainable location being within walking distance of some services including a shop, post office and on a bus route and it would contribute to the Council's 5 year land supply.

A Ward Member moved a motion for a site meeting given that there was already one scheduled for the adjoining site on 2 September 2020. This was seconded by Councillor Mike Dendor. On being put to the vote the motion was agreed.

Resolved: That application 19/505353/FULL be deferred to allow the Planning Working Group to meet on site.

2.4 REFERENCE NO – 20/502848/FULL					
APPLICATION PROPOSAL					
Erection of single storey rear extension with insertion of roof lights (retrospective).					
ADDRESS 9 Walsby Drive Sittingbourne Kent ME10 2TT					
WARD Kemsley	PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL	APPLICANT Badcock	Mrs	Julie	

The Development Manager introduced the report and drew attention to an error in paragraph 8.4 on page 44 of the report, and stated that the rear depth was 2.5 metres as set-out in paragraph 2.2 on page 43, and not 4 metres. Therefore the development complied with the Council's supplementary guidance on extensions. The only reason that the application was being reported to Committee was because the applicant was an employee of the Council.

The Development Manager reported that no objections from adjoining neighbours or statutory consultees had been received.

The Chairman moved the officer recommendation to approve the application and this was seconded by the Vice-Chairman.

A Ward Member supported the application.

Resolved: That application 20/502848/FULL be approved.

2.5 REFERENCE NO – 20/502364/FULL

APPLICATION PROPOSAL

Conversion of garage into a habitable room to create a larger kitchen area, including replacement of garage door with a window and installation of a sky light to existing flat roof.

ADDRESS 42 Berkeley Close Dunkirk Faversham Kent ME13 9TR

WARD	Boughton	and	PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL	APPLICANT	Mrs	Keeley
Courtena	У		Dunkirk	Harrison		
				AGENT		

The Area Planning Officer introduced the application. There were no updates. He showed Members some photographs of the site.

Parish Councillor Jeff Tutt, representing Dunkirk Parish Council, spoke against the application.

The Chairman moved the officer recommendation to approve the application and this was seconded by the Vice-Chairman.

Members were invited to debate the application and the following points were made:

- Developers were building garages too small and that needed to be addressed; and
- the proposal seemed a sensible use of the garage space.

Resolved: That application 20/502364/FULL be approved subject to conditions (1) and (2) in the report.

2.6 R	2.6 REFERENCE NO – 20/502567/FULL					
APPLICA	APPLICATION PROPOSAL					
Removal	Removal of existing shed and erection of log store.					
ADDRESS 67-69 The Street, Boughton Under Blean, Faversham, Kent, ME13 9BE						
WARD	Boughton	and	PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL	APPLICANT	Mr	Alastair
Courtenay			Boughton under Blean	Gould		
				AGENT		

The Area Planning Officer introduced the application. There were no updates.

The Chairman moved the officer recommendation to approve the application and this was seconded by the Vice-Chairman.

Resolved: That application 20/502567/FULL be approved subject to conditions (1) and (2) in the report.

REFERENCE NO – 20/502759/FULL 2.7 **APPLICATION PROPOSAL** Erection of a two storey side and rear extension and a carport and first floor side extension as amended by drawing no's. 29360A 003 Rev A; 29360A 004 Rev A; 29360A 006 Rev A; 29360A 007 Rev A and 29360A 008 Rev A. ADDRESS Pottery Cottage Dawes Road Dunkirk Faversham Kent ME13 9TP WARD PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL **APPLICANT** and Mr Bob Boughton Courtenay Dunkirk Bridgen **AGENT** Claque

The Area Planning Officer introduced the application. He showed Members drawings of the proposal which he clarified was for two extensions. It was not an application to split.

Parish Councillor Jeff Tutt, representing Dunkirk Parish Council, spoke against the application.

The Chairman moved the officer recommendation to approve the application and this was seconded by the Vice-Chairman.

A Member considered that the application was not out-of-keeping if the plot was taken as a whole. He noted no objections had been received and considered the proposal enhanced the cottage and his initial concerns on overlooking had been resolved.

Resolved: That application 20/502759/FULL be approved subject to conditions (1) to (3) in the report.

2.8 REFERENCE NOS – 20/502127/FULL						
APPLICATION PROPOSAL	APPLICATION PROPOSAL					
Erection of a first floor extension to existing Masonic Hall and changes to fenestration.						
ADDRESS Masonic Hall, The Boat Yard, Upper Brents, Faversham, Kent ME13 7DL						
WARD Priory	PARISH/TOWN COUNCIL	APPLICANT	Kent Masonic			
	Faversham Town	Property Company Ltd				
		AGENT	Woodstock			
		Associates				

The Area Planning Officer introduced the application and stated that 14 parking spaces would be provided.

The Chairman moved the officer recommendation to approve the application and this was seconded by the Vice-Chairman.

A Ward Member spoke against the application and considered it would exacerbate existing parking problems in the area.

Members were invited to debate the application and the following points were made:

- Supported the application and considered it was an improvement on the existing building;
- would we be able to add a condition to limit the number of meetings and restrict the hiring of the venue?
- The application was an improvement and welcomed the energy efficiency improvements proposed; and
- concerned about the 'wedged' way the cars would need to park.

In response to questions from Members, the Area Planning Officer reported that the car park was essentially a yard and as club members would all be attending for the same meeting the 'wedged' way of parking would not be an issue for them.

Councillor Benjamin Martin moved the following amendment: That the following additional conditions be imposed: (12) No more than 52 meetings per year restricted to 45 people in attendance at any meeting, and no meeting to begin before 6pm during weekdays Monday to Friday and no meeting to finish beyond 10pm, and (13) Biodiversity improvements to include the addition of wildlife nesting boxes for bats and birds within the building, and external lighting to prevent the disturbance of any such species. These conditions to be delegated to officers to agree the correct wording. This was seconded by Councillor Monique Bonney.

A Member asked for clarification as to whether the amendment should be delegated to officers to negotiate with the applicant. The proposer of the motion agreed and that it also be in consultation with the Ward Member.

On being put to the vote the amendment was agreed.

A Member asked for clarification that the amendment was to be delegated to officers otherwise it would need to come back to Committee at a future meeting. The proposer of the amendment confirmed that he had requested that and asked that the Ward Members could also be consulted.

Resolved: That application 20/502127/FULL be delegated to officers to approve subject to conditions (1) to (11) in the report and the imposition of additional conditions (the wording of which to be agreed in consultation with the officers and Ward Councillors) addressing the following: (12) No more than 52 meetings per year, (13) Each meeting to be restricted to 45 people in attendance, (14) no meeting to begin before 6pm during weekdays (Monday to Friday) and no meeting to finish beyond 10pm, (15) Biodiversity improvements to include the addition of wildlife nesting boxes for bats and birds within the building, and (16) external lighting to prevent the disturbance of any such species.

PART 5

Decisions by the County Council and Secretary of State, reported for information.

Item 5.1 – Land adj Westfield House Breach

APPEAL DISMISSED

COMMITTEE REFUSAL

A Member stated that it was good to see that the lack of a 5-year housing supply did not hang over the Council "like a sword".

Chairman

Copies of this document are available on the Council website http://www.swale.gov.uk/dso/. If you would like hard copies or alternative versions (i.e. large print, audio, different language) we will do our best to accommodate your request please contact Swale Borough Council at Swale House, East Street, Sittingbourne, Kent, ME10 3HT or telephone the Customer Service Centre 01795 417850.

All Minutes are draft until agreed at the next meeting of the Committee/Panel